State of Michigan
Michigan Department of Community Health (MDCH)
Changes to Upcoming Michigan Medicaid Managed Care 
Request for Proposal (RFP) Pre-Bid Announcement

Questions and Answers

	Number
	Question
	Answer

	1
	[bookmark: _GoBack]What are the “service delivery regions” marked with dotted lines on the region map?  Are they all sub divisions, and/or are all of the 10 prosperity regions included in a “service delivery region”?
	The “service delivery regions” marked with dotted lines pertain specifically to Governor Snyder’s Regional Prosperity Initiative. The regions on which Bidders will bid for Medicaid service area are the ten (10) complete, numbered regions shown in contrasting colors. The dotted lines have no impact on this bid process.   

	2
	Please clarify the 1:750 Primary Care Provider (PCP) to member ratio.  Is the intent to allow plans to bid or expand into those counties that currently do not meet those ratios as well as prevent plans from bidding on counties where the 1:750 is already met?
	The 1:750 PCP to member ratio needs to be met in each county in the region for which the Bidder is bidding. Network adequacy will be assessed based on the member capacity a bidder tells MDCH it can serve. It applies equally to each Bidder, and is not intended to prevent Bidders from bidding on any particular region. In rural counties where there are not providers in sufficient number to meet this ratio, MDCH will have sole discretion in determining network adequacy. Bidders that bid in regions containing counties where there are not providers in sufficient number to meet the 1:750 ratio need to submit documentation attesting to their network and any additional information to support their bid.   

	3
	Will services for people with developmental disabilities and severe and persistent mental health needs continue to be carved out from Michigan’s Medicaid Health Plans?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted at the time the RFP is released and reviewed.  





	Number
	Question
	Answer

	4
	When is the Michigan managed care RFP anticipated to be released?
	The RFP is anticipated to be released by May 1, 2015, with responses due in August of 2015.  See press release dated 1/26/15.

	5
	The Prosperity Region map has dotted line divisions with a definition of “Service Delivery Regions”.  Can MDCH clarify how these “divisions” may be used within each of the Regions?
	The “service delivery regions” marked with dotted lines pertain specifically to Governor Snyder’s Regional Prosperity Initiative. The regions on which Bidders will bid for Medicaid service area are the ten (10) complete, numbered regions shown in contrasting colors. The dotted lines have no impact on this bid process.   

	6
	The January 2015 announcement changes the current regions to the Prosperity Regions as part of the forthcoming RFP. 
a. Will the MHP network submission coincide with the overall RFP due date? 
b. Will letters of intent be allowed for establishing a provider network?
c. Will the State consider the Hospital Access agreement in the establishment of a provider network?  
	a. Network adequacy must be demonstrated at the time of bid submission and it will be reviewed during the evaluation process. 
b. Letters of intent LOI are not permitted to obtain Department of Insurance and Financial Services (DIFS) approval for service area.  
c. The State will consider the Hospital Access Agreement in the establishment of a provider network. A current list of hospitals with a signed Hospital Access Agreement is attached. 

	7
	Can MDCH confirm that no supplemental response to add other service areas will be permitted after the RFP submission date?
	MDCH confirms that no supplemental responses to add other service areas will be permitted after the RFP submission date as it relates to the bid process.




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	8
	Will network adequacy require DIFS approval?  If so, will DIFS approval need to be secured prior to the RFP submission or prior to RFP contract award?
	The DIFS approval process requires attestation that the provider network meets all requirements outlined in the bulletin that can be accessed here: http://www.michigan.gov/documents/dleg/2009-07-INS_268260_7.pdf?20150122113812

	9
	Can MDCH confirm that the Prosperity Regions will be used for rate development thus changing the current rate base and rate development process?  
	The Prosperity Regions will be utilized for capitation rate development beginning with the effective date of the contract period as specified in the Medicaid program rebid.  Thus, the structure of the rate cells will be changed to reflect the new regional assignment.  Rates that are currently effective for State Fiscal Year (SFY) 2015 will not be impacted by the region change. 

	10
	Assuming the answer to Question #9 is yes; will there be a complete re-basing of MHP rates for FY16? If so, what time period (of data collection) will be used for a re-basing?
	Based on the changes that will occur with the Medicaid program rebid, capitation rates for the Michigan Medicaid Health Plans (MHP) will be rebased beginning with the effective date of the contract period as specified in the Medicaid program rebid.  It is anticipated that MDCH will utilize SFY 2012-2014 encounter data experience to establish the new capitation rates. 

	11
	If a bidder has greater capacity than the prescribed ratio of 1:750 PCP to beneficiary, for example 1:500 or below, will more points be awarded in the RFP scoring framework?
	MDCH is unable to release details of the scoring criteria prior to the release of the RFP.

	12
	It is assumed that the PCPs included in the ratio will be those “open to new patients”.  How will this be assessed?
	As part of the bid submission, bidders will be required to indicate which PCPs are open and accepting new patients.




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	13
	The Press Release indicates that carriers will have to cover all counties in a region.  Will the assessment then be by region or by county in reviewing capacity?  How will contiguous county providers (from adjacent regions) be used assuming they are within the acceptable travel time/distance requirement?
	Network adequacy will be assessed at the county level.  If a bidder is using contiguous county providers to complete its network, those providers should be reported as contributing to network adequacy even if said provider(s) is in a different bordering region.  

	14
	In previous RFPs, MDCH has used a factor of 1.5 – 2.0 times the projected population to establish the target population.  What will MDCH use as the factor for targeted enrollment in this rebid?
	The projected population will be released as part of the RFP.

	15
	Will the MI Child Premium of $10.00 per family remain? If so, will Maximus continue to collect premium?
	The MI Child Premium of $10.00 per family will remain and Maximus will continue to collect the premium.

	16
	Will the benefits for MI Child be the same as the Medicaid benefits for adolescents such as behavioral services?  With the MIHP benefit becoming part of the “rebid”, will the State include evidence based home visiting services for pregnant women and children in the Medicaid managed care benefit package?  If so, how will the State define “evidence-based home visitation” providers?
	MI Child will become a Medicaid expansion population and as such will have the Medicaid benefit.  Further information cannot be released at this time. 

	17
	Will the existing health plan’s Medicaid provider network be used for the MI Child coverage?  Will MI Child beneficiaries require separate handbooks and consumer materials?
	Yes, the existing network can be used provided it meets adequacy requirements.  No, bidders will not be required to have a separate handbook or other materials.  However, premium requirements must be outlined for the MI Child/Medicaid expansion population.  




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	18
	Will the capitation rates for MI Child be the same as the Medicaid rates for adolescents?
	The current MI Child population will be blended in with the MHP and Children’s Special Health Care Services (CSHCS) populations.  The increased level of reimbursement that was utilized in the current MI Child capitation rates will not be assumed to continue after the population has shifted into the MHP and CSHCS populations. MDCH will utilize MI Child historical experience, but re-price that experience at reimbursement levels consistent with current MHP and CSHCS encounter experience. MDCH does not anticipate the need to establish separate rate cells for MI Child members beginning with the effective date of the contract period as specified in the Medicaid program rebid.

	19
	How will the dental benefit for the MI Child product be administered in this transition and will Healthy Kids Dental Program (for all counties) be included in the migration to Medicaid as well?
	Benefit packages will be specified in the RFP.

	20
	Will additional points be awarded to bidders who file for multiple regions?
	MDCH is unable to release details of the scoring criteria prior to the release of the RFP.

	21
	How does MDCH envision the process of transitioning members should a current health plan not win a region?
	MDCH is exploring transition options should this occur. 




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	22
	The January 2015 announcement changes the current regions to the Prosperity Regions as part of the forthcoming RFP. 
a. Will the MHP network submission coincide with the overall RFP due date? 
b. Will Letters of Intent be allowed to substantiate an adequate provider network?
c. Will Letters of Agreement be allowed to substantiate an adequate provider network?
d. Will the State allow the Hospital Access agreement to substantiate an adequate a provider network?  
	a. Network adequacy must be demonstrated at the time of bid submission and will be reviewed during the evaluation process.  
b. Letters of intent are not permitted to obtain DIFS approval for service area.    
c. Letters of Agreement are not permitted to obtain DIFS approval for service area.  
d. The State will allow the Hospital Access Agreement to substantiate an adequate provider network. A current list of hospitals with a signed Hospital Access Agreement is attached.

	23
	Will network adequacy require DIFS approval?  If so, will DIFS approval need to be secured prior to the RFP submission or prior to RFP contract award?  Specifically, will DIFS need to review and approve service area expansions prior to the bid response if a MCO is not currently serving all counties within a Region or will that approval be granted at the time the MCO is awarded the contract?
	The DIFS approval process requires attestation that the provider network meets all requirements outlined in the bulletin that can be accessed here: http://www.michigan.gov/documents/dleg/2009-07-INS_268260_7.pdf?20150122113812


	24
	Will providers need to be fully credentialed by the health plan before they can be submitted with the bid?
	The DIFS approval process requires attestation that the provider network meets all requirements outlined in the bulletin that can be accessed here: http://www.michigan.gov/documents/dleg/2009-07-INS_268260_7.pdf?20150122113812

	25
	It is assumed that the PCPs included in the ratio will be those “open to new patients”.  How will this be assessed?  How will credit be given to recognize PCPs who may be serving existing Medicaid membership/patients but may not be “open to new patients”?
	As part of the bid submission, bidders will be required to indicate which PCPs are open and accepting new patients.  MDCH is unable to release details of the scoring criteria prior to the release of the RFP.

	26
	Will the benefits for MI Child be the same as the Medicaid benefits for adolescents such as behavioral services?
	Benefit packages will be specified in the RFP.




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	27
	With the MIHP benefit becoming part of the “rebid”, will the State include evidence based home visiting services for pregnant women and children in the Medicaid managed care benefit package?  If so, how will the State define “evidence-based home visitation” providers? Will the Medicaid rates recognize (include additional dollars) to reflect the inclusion of the expanded benefit?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	28
	The Prosperity Region map has dotted line divisions with a definition of “Service Delivery Regions”.  Can you clarify how these “divisions” may be used within each of the Regions?   
	The “service delivery regions” marked with dotted lines pertain specifically to Governor Snyder’s Regional Prosperity Initiative. The regions on which Bidders will bid for Medicaid service area are the ten (10) complete, numbered regions shown in contrasting colors. The dotted lines have no impact on this bid process.   

	29
	Can the MDCH confirm that the Prosperity Regions will be used for rate development thus changing the current rate development process?  Assuming the answer is yes, will there be a complete rebasing of MHP rates for FY16? What time period (of data collection) will be used for a re-basing if necessary? 
	The Prosperity Regions will be utilized for capitation rate development beginning with the effective date of the contract period as specified in the Medicaid program rebid.  Thus, the structure of the rate cells will be changed to reflect the new regional assignment.  Rates that are currently effective for SFY 2015 will not be impacted by the region change.  Based on the changes that will occur with the Medicaid program rebid, capitation rates will be rebased beginning with the effective date of the contract period as specified in the Medicaid program rebid.  It is anticipated that MDCH will utilize SFY 2012-2014 encounter data experience to establish the new capitation rates. 




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	30
	Will LOIs or signed contracts be required to support documents submitted with the bid?
	Letters of intent are not permitted to obtain DIFS approval for service area.  

	31
	Will the PCP ratio of 1:750 be evaluated as part of the RFP process, or will it serve another purpose, such as establishing access requirements in the contract and/or capping the number of members a health plan may serve in a county or region?
	MDCH is unable to release details of the scoring criteria prior to the release of the RFP. However, PCP ratio will be a factor in determining the number of enrollees a health plan may serve in a county within a region.    

	32
	Will the PCP ratio of 1:750 be used at the county level or will it be applied for the entire region?
	The PCP ratio will be evaluated at the county level for each county within the region.  

	33
	Will the PCP ratio of 1:750 be applied to the entire Medicaid population in a county or just to the maximum number of members that the health plan intends to serve in that county (i.e. market share)?
	The PCP ratio will be evaluated based on the maximum number of members the bidder intends to serve.

	34
	What will be the threshold (e.g., pass/fail) provider network adequacy requirements a potential bidder must meet in order to be able to bid on a region, if any? For example, does the health plan need to have DIFS approval for each county in a region in order to bid?
	The DIFS approval process requires attestation that the provider network meets all requirements outlined in the bulletin that can be accessed here: http://www.michigan.gov/documents/dleg/2009-07-INS_268260_7.pdf?20150122113812  

	35
	Will MDCH allow the health plans to submit a single RFP response that includes all regions of interest or will the health plans have to submit a separate proposal for each region they apply for?   
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	36
	Can DCH provide any more detail about dental network expectations? Current Medicaid health plans provide dental services to adult Healthy Michigan members. Is DCH anticipating making any changes to the administration of dental benefits for children or the traditional Medicaid adult population?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	37
	How will the MHPs demonstrate they have capacity to deliver the mental health benefit of 20 outpatient visits that MHPs are contractually obligated to provide?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	38
	How will the State monitor the MHPs’ actual delivery of the benefit?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	39
	Against what evidence-based standards of adequacy of access and, above all, adequacy of utilization (in support of better population health and health outcomes) will the monitoring be done?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	40
	If the monitoring discloses shortcomings in access and utilization, what actions will the State take to assure compliance with the contract?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	41
	In what manner will MHPs inform PCPs about the means to use to gain actual access for their patients to the benefit?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	42
	How will respondents to the RFP demonstrate that they will fulfill these roles with respect to the mental health benefit for which they are legally responsible?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	43
	How will respondents to the RFP manage financial risk for the costs of mental health care when MHPs carry no financial risk for inpatient psychiatric hospitalization, which is a “carved-out” benefit provided through community mental health organizations?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	44
	How does an entity manage a risk it does not carry, and how does the State hold the MHP accountable for managing the State’s risk of having to finance preventable psychiatric hospitalization the State ultimately pays for through Prepaid Inpatient Health Plans?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	45
	What financial incentive to assure the delivery of needed mental health care do MHPs incorporate into how they do business in the absence of their financial responsibility for inpatient psychiatric care arising when un/under-treated mental health problems worsen to the point that inpatient care is needed?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	46
	Will applicant MHPs demonstrate that they have translated the well-recognized relationship between mental health problems and physical health problems into a robust financial incentive to promote screening, smooth transitions to care, and utilization of the 20 outpatient visit mental health benefit?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	47
	Mental health problems affect the domain of care for which MHPs are financially at risk. How does this fact affect the MHPs’ management of benefits?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	48
	How will the MHPs routinely obtain and use feedback from PCPs about any barriers to mental health care access?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	49
	How will the State report and disseminate – in a manner reasonably calculated to be understandable, meaningful, and seen by the intended audiences – the standards for and results of its performance monitoring, including the results of any required corrective actions?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	50
	What is the required ratio of Psychiatrist to Patient? How is the ratio determined? Specifically, what are the underlying assumptions and the sources of those assumptions for calculating the ratio? For example, what is the evidence-based estimate of the need for mental health care in the Medicaid population in terms of percentage of the population in need, the level of mental health condition (mild, moderate, severe and persistent), the intensity and frequency of care needed, and other relevant variables? Is this estimate specifically for the Medicaid population, rather than for the general population? If so, has it been adjusted to take account of the Medicaid expansion to groups not formerly covered by Medicaid (e.g., homeless, childless, non-disabled adults)?  How does frequency of visits for service figure in the calculation of the Psychiatrist to Patient ratio?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	51
	What standard must the applicant demonstrate it will meet for assuring that impaneled psychiatrists actually and timely accept new Medicaid patients? How will compliance with this assurance be timely reported to and monitored by the State?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	52
	What specific information must respondents provide about supply of and access to psychotherapists? (Psychotherapists are counselors, psychologists, and social workers with appropriate levels of education and licensure.) 
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	53
	How does the applicant propose to assure that psychotherapists are deployed in its provider network in a manner calculated to optimize Medicaid patients’ access to mental health care and to address any shortfalls in the supply of and timely access to psychiatrists?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	54
	What standard must an applicant MHP meet to demonstrate that every enrolled individual covered by the Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnostic, and Treatment (EPSDT) benefit is served? 
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	55
	How does the applicant MHP propose to track referrals for diagnosis and treatment for mental health problems and assure that all needed EPSDT services are actually provided and by whom?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	56
	How will the State monitor that MHPs are fully compliant and, in particular, that barriers to access – including any shortage of psychiatrists in the applicant’s service area – are systematically identified and lowered?
	This question is not directly related to the content of the press release and should be resubmitted, if applicable, at the time the RFP is released.  

	57
	With respect to the decision to modifying your approach to service areas, will the state consider allowing a Health Plan to receive a contract award in a region where network adequacy has been demonstrated in the vast majority of all counties in the region?
	The 1:750 Primary Care Provider (PCP) to member ratio needs to be met in each county in the region for which the Bidder is bidding. In rural counties where there are not providers in sufficient number to meet this ratio, MDCH will have sole discretion in determining network adequacy. Bidders that bid in regions containing counties where there are not providers in sufficient number to meet the 1:750 ratio need to submit documentation attesting to their network and any additional information to support their bid. 
Network adequacy must be demonstrated at the time of bid submission and will be reviewed during the evaluation process.  




	Number
	Question
	Answer

	58
	Will MDCH require service area approval by DIFS prior to contract award? If yes, how will
MDCH work with DIFS to ensure a coordinated approach given the timelines involved?
	Network adequacy must be demonstrated at the time of bid and will be reviewed during the evaluation process. The DIFS approval process requires attestation that the provider network meets all requirements outlined in the bulletin that can be accessed here:  http://www.michigan.gov/documents/dleg/2009-07-INS_268260_7.pdf?20150122113812

	59
	Given the change in service areas, does MDCH plan to appropriately account for regional variation in practice patterns and cultural disparities when comparing Health Plan performance?
	MDCH is unable to release details of the scoring criteria prior to the release of the RFP.

	60
	In order to assure a robust number of competitors in the non-rural Prosperity Regions, with those competitors having a reasonable time to assemble a sound provider network, would the State consider one or more of the following:

a. Permitting bids to offer only partial regions.
b. Identifying dates within the RFP that allow sufficient time for health plans to modify their provider networks.
c. Extending the current contract for a reasonable amount of time.
d. Allowing LOIs, as opposed to complete Service Agreements, for key provider contracts, enabling additional time to complete contracting with provider organizations.
	a. MDCH will not allow bid submissions for partial regions.
b. Network adequacy must be demonstrated at the time of bid and will be reviewed during the evaluation process. 
c. The current contracts will be extended until 12/31/2015.
d. LOIs are not permitted to obtain DIFS approval for service area.    
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